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TITLE: OFFENDER TRACKING SYSTEM
ADDENDUM NO. 3
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 3.
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Jeannie Lake
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP14-2856A Offender Tracking System

	1. 
	3
	INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS
	Q:
Does Appendix B, Contract have to be signed and returned with the proposal OR only the acknowledgement on page 3?

A: 
Only acknowledged on page 3 needs to be initialed, the contract does not need to be signed and returned.

	2. 
	 4
	SCHEDULE OF EVENTS
	Q:
When are cost proposals to be opened? Are cost proposals evaluated by the 
same or different evaluation committee members? 

A:
The cost proposal is opened and reviewed at the same time as the offer.  The cost proposal is evaluated by the same (only one) evaluation committee.

	3. 
	 4
	SCHEDULE OF EVENTS
	Q:
Multiple questions here: The State’s answers to vendor questions are vital to proposers and requires a minimum of two weeks ample time for proposers to implement the State’s answers into their proposals.  Also, leading vendors will ship proposals overnight to arrive the day before they are due (this is to ensure against delays by shipping carriers).  The schedule in the RFP currently has the posting of final answers and proposal due date separated by only eight business days which is prohibitive to such consideration/incorporation of final answers and advance delivery.  These points made, any advance consideration you may give to amending the schedule to enable at least two (2) full weeks between posting of answers and proposal due date would be appreciated by all leading proposers.  Additionally, Addendum #1 extended the RFP milestones up to and including the proposal due date – Please confirm – Acknowledging Addendum #1extension of the due date, does the State anticipate maintaining the post submittal milestones as originally written in the RFP and, if NOT, will you please advise in advance regarding the new anticipated dates?

A:  
The State agrees to extend the due date by two weeks.

	4. 
	9
	2.3.1
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: Will the State make access available to the electronic copies of proposals submitted in response to 1.7.5 OR only hardcopies?  If so, is 
remote access/delivery of these electronic copies provided and by what means (Example: Posting on state website?  Delivery via email? Other?)

A:  
The State will make electronic copies available.

	5. 
	10
	2.4.2
	Q:  
This item calls out “If an offeror is found nonresponsive, the procurement officer will notify the offeror by mail.” When and by what method (US Mail? Email? Other) will this occur?

A: 
U.S. Mail after the RFP response due date.

	6. 
	10
	2.4.3 & 2.4.7
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: These items call out “The evaluator/evaluation committee 

may initiate discussion, negotiation, or a best and final offer.” Does the State 


anticipate conducting “negotiations, or a best and final offers” as part of this RFP? 

If so, when is each anticipated to occur – before or after tier 2 evals have been 


completed?

A:  
The State does not anticipate conducting negotiations or a best and final offer.

	7. 
	10
	2.4.3
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: This item calls out “If an evaluation committee meets to deliberate and evaluate the proposals, the public may attend and observe the evaluation committee deliberations.” How would members of the public become informed in advance of committee meetings?  If via posting, will you please provide the specific details regarding such posting location(s)?

A:  
All public meetings are posted on the State of Montana, General Services Division website at least 72 hours prior. 

GSD Website:  http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/onestop/Meetingdefault.aspx 

	8. 
	10
	2.4.4


	Q:  
Multiple questions here: These sections speak to “discussion” and “negotiation”. 

By this wording does this confirm that “discussion” and “negotiation” are open to all 

participants in the Tier 2 evaluations?  Upon the basis that the RFP identifies that 

cost evaluations only occur in Tier 1, if negotiations occur during Tier 2 



Oral/Product presentations, how would such price/cost negotiations be scored?

A:  
Product Demonstrations may be requested for the top three scoring offerors from tier one, or for any offeror where the State determines it is in the best interest of the State to conduct such a product demonstration. Offerors will be scored according to the scoring table on pages 21 and 22.  

	9. 
	14
	3.0 
	Q:  
This item calls out “The Montana Department of Corrections (State or MDOC) is seeking a contractor to provide an Offender Tracking Device and System (OTS or System), to track designated offenders under the supervision of MDOC.” Upon the basis that “contractor” is singular, is this indicative that the State will NOT consider making multiple awards for this RFP?

A:
The State is making one award for this RFP.

	10. 
	14, 17
	3.0, 3.4.1 
	Q: 
Multiple questions/points here: This item calls out (underline added for emphasis):“It is a mandatory requirement of this RFP that the OTS use at a minimum GPS, Cell Phone Tower Tracking, and an RF Beacon per unit. The RF Beacon will signal via cell tower and/or landline.”  Upon the basis of this wording will proposals that do NOT offer an include “Cell Phone Tower Tracking” be rejected? Regarding “Cell Phone Tower Tracking” there are two separate approaches available in the industry: Approach A: In addition to GPS tracking, GPS devices operating on CDMA (Sprint, Verizon) cellular networks can use multiple cellular towers to triangulate (also known as “AFLT”)  and locate the bracelet in locations where GPS cannot (underground, indoors, etc). Approach B  GPS devices operating on GSM cellular networks (AT&T, T-Mobile) can NOT triangulate rather, they are limited to only locate the last cellular tower that the GPS device communicated with (that tower may be miles away from the actual location of the bracelet/participant).  Which approach is MDOC requesting by the “mandatory” requirement “Cell Phone Tower Tracking?” – To enable MDOC evaluation of either/or approach, and to proactively prevent against potential contention regarding this wording, will MDOC please amend all references (in both 3.0 and 3.4.1) from “Cell Phone Tower Tracking” rather, to read a generic “Secondary Cellular Tracking”? Will MDOC please define in detail specifically what they require?  Additionally, upon the basis that “Secondary Cellular Tracking” this a “mandatory” requirement, must it be activated on all “Active” and “Passive” GPS devices? If so, will the State please confirm this per the proposed scope of work bullets below in this question? Additionally, Approach A above commonly involves costs that are determined based on the frequency the agency requires the device to triangulate – The RFP identifies “Secondary Cellular Tracking” as “mandatory” however, there are no RFP technical requirements stated frequency that “Secondary Cellular Tracking” ,must occur – To ensure MDOC’s needs are identified in the RFP and evaluated and met accordingly, will the State please insert detailed requirements for the “Secondary Cellular Tracking” as an additional bulleted items at the end of item 3.4.2, such as adding the following bullets?:
“3.4.2 Tracking Device 
· Active GPS must have Secondary Cellular Tracking constantly enabled and occurring at a minimum frequency of once every thirty (30) minutes
· Passive GPS must have Secondary Cellular Tracking constantly enabled and occurring at a minimum frequency of once every sixty(60) minutes”

A: 
The State is requiring cell phone tower triangulation as the mandatory requirement. MDOC will amend the appropriate sections to state cell phone tower triangulation. Currently 29% of MDOC offenders are using cell phone tower triangulation. MDOC would like to have the service available but it is not mandatory to use. 

	11. 
	14, 17
	3.0, 3.4.1 
	Q: 
Multiple questions/points here: This item calls out (underline added for emphasis): “It is a mandatory requirement of this RFP that the OTS use at a minimum GPS, Cell Phone Tower Tracking, and an RF Beacon per unit. The RF Beacon will signal via cell tower and/or landline.”  Upon the basis of this wording will proposals that do NOT offer an “RF beacon” be rejected? While some vendors provide simple “RF Beacons” others provide full feature “Home Units” - It is for this reason that both RF Beacon and Home Unit should NOT both be independently specified rather, to enable MDOC evaluation of either/or approach, and to proactively prevent against potential contention regarding this wording, will MDOC please amend all references (in both 3.0 and 3.4.1) from “RF beacon” rather, to read “RF Beacon/Home Unit.” Additionally, these items state the RFP identifies the RF Beacon/Home Unit as “mandatory” however, there are no RFP technical requirements for the RF Beacon/Home Unit within the scope of work– Specifically what minimum functionality is expected of the RF Beacon/Home Unit (Example: Must the RF Beacon/Home Unit be available in models that support communication via  both cell tower and/or landline? To ensure MDOC’s needs are identified in the RFP and evaluated and met accordingly, will the State please insert detailed requirements for the RF Beacon/Home Unit as an additional item 3.4.3, such as the following?

 “3.4.3 RF Beacon/Home Unit

· Proposed RF Beacon/Home Unit (HMU) device shall be small an inconspicuous as possible – Dimensions shall be no larger than approximately 3.75” x 7” x 7.75” and weigh no more than four (4) pounds. MDOC rejects this language
· RF Beacon/HMU shall incorporate non-volatile memory capable of storing 2,500 events with date and time stamp. This is optional
· RF Beacon/HMU shall operate from 110VAC commercial electricity and have internal           rechargeable batteries back-up capable of performing all functions for in excess of 50 hours of continuous operation.  This is optional
· RF Beacon/HMU shall be available in models supporting landline and cellular communications.   MDOC requires both types to be available
· RF Beacon/HMU shall incorporate a transceiver capable of two-way communication with the 1-piece body attached GPS device.  Yes 

· RF Beacon/HMU shall detect and report tampering and motion, as well as disconnect/reconnect of electrical power and telephone line. Yes
· RF Beacon/HMU shall incorporate an LCD to display alphanumeric prompts to both participants and Contractor and MDOC staff.  No
· RF Beacon/HMU shall incorporate front panel controls enabling secure Contractor and MDOC staff access to perform: No
· Variable range testing 

· Variable range settings (Low, Medium, High)

· Variable reporting interval in one (1) hour increments with a default of four (4) hours

· Pairing with 1-piece body attached GPS device

· Diagnostic testing”

A: 
The state will reject a proposal without an RF beacon and/or home unit. The RF beacon must be able to communicate with the GPS ankle device. MDOC requires the availability of RF beacon/home unit equipment that is able to communicate via cell phone tower or landline. MDOC wants the choice of either/or based on department needs. 

	12. 
	14
	3.1.1
	Q:  
This item calls out “Offerors must describe their iOS or Android App; include which ones and what versions of the operating systems they are compatible with and how often they are updated.”  Will the State please amend this from a “must” to a “should” requirement as certain leading vendors do NOT require an app rather; they support secure access via standard smart phone browsers withOUT the need for an added app?

A:  
MDOC requires a system that is accessible via smart phone, PC, and tablet. The language will remain “must”.

	13. 
	15 & 17
	3.1.3 & 3.4.2
	Q:  
3.1.3 “User Interface” calls out “…Explain the interface and address, at a minimum, the following tasks…Acquisition rate…Transfer rate…”  “Acquisition rate” is a characteristic of the GPS device (NOT the “User Interface”) indicating the rate at which the device captures GPS location from the satellites (ala a tracking point), additionally, “Transfer rate” is a characteristic of the GPS device (NOT the “User Interface”) indicating the rate at which the device reports information via the cellular network to the monitoring center. Additionally, “Impaired location” is a characteristic of the GPS device (NOT the “User Interface”) indicating the rate at which the device captures “Secondary Cellular Tracking” location from the cellular towers (ala a tracking point).It is important to note that “Acquisition rate”,  “Transfer rate” and “Impaired location” are commonly different for “Active GPS” versus “Passive GPS.”  “Active” and “Passive” are both identified in RFP Section 5 Cost Proposal however, the RFP scope of work is absent any detail regarding MDOC’s requirements nor is there any reference to what “Acquisition rate” and “Transfer rate” are required for each. To ensure MDOC’s needs are identified in the RFP and met accordingly, will the State please insert detailed requirements as an additional bulleted items at the end of item 3.4.2, such as adding the following bullets (NOTE: The below bullets also include the recommendations from question 10 above herein)?:
3.4.2 Tracking Device 
· Active GPS must include all of the following:

· GPS acquisition rate occurring at a minimum frequency of once every minute
· Cellular transfer rate reporting alert information such as Tamper immediately with all other information reporting at a minimum frequency of every ten (10) minutes
· Impaired location via Secondary Cellular Tracking constantly enabled and occurring at a minimum frequency of once every thirty (30) minutes MDOC rejects this language
· Passive GPS must include all of the following:

· GPS acquisition rate occurring at a minimum frequency of once every minute
· Cellular transfer rate reporting alert information such as Tamper immediately with all other information reporting at a minimum frequency of every twelve (12) hours
· Impaired location via Secondary Cellular Tracking constantly enabled and occurring at a minimum frequency of once every sixty(60) minutes MDOC rejects this language
A:  
MDOC requires an acquisition rate of once per minute and a transfer rate of every 30 minutes, except for alerts for Active GPS. MDOC requires an acquisition rate of once per minute and a transfer rate of every 24 hours except for alerts for Passive GPS.

	14. 
	15 & 21
	3.1.4 & 6.2
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: These items call out “3.1.4 Security.  This section is mandatory. Offerors that fail to understand and comply will be deemed nonresponsive and will be eliminated from further consideration… The contractor shall implement and maintain appropriate and effective security controls for the work performed within the scope of the Offender Tracking System Contract. As applicable, these controls should be based on the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) information technology security standards,” and “EVALUATION CRITERIA TIER ONE… Security, 3.1.4, P/F” Item 3.1.4 is presently passively worded to enable a proposer to pledge compliance that is not otherwise in place for this requirement that is deemed mandatory Pass/Fail Upon the basis that the RFP deems item 3.1.4 mandatory, will MDOC please amend this requirement as follows to support such requirement?: “3.1.4 Security.  This section is mandatory. Offerors that fail to understand and comply will be deemed nonresponsive and will be eliminated from further consideration… At the time of bid submittal The contractor shall implement and maintainthe proposer shall be certified and have in place appropriate and effective security controls for the work performed within the scope of the Offender Tracking System Contract. As applicable, at the time of proposal submittal, these controls should be based onmust be documented to meet the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) information technology security standards,” If this amendment is NOT made, will MDOC please remove this as a mandatory requirement?

A:  
MDOC requires the bidder to have compliance in place prior to implementation not prior to bid submittal.

	15. 
	16
	3.2.1
	Q:  
This item calls out “Describe how your system handles alerts. Include what types of alerts are available, and how the alerts are recorded. Please include at least the following alerts in your response and include any other alerts your system provides not listed below. Are alerts customizable to each offender and/or user?... No motion or motion detection.” “No motion or motion detection” is a method used by outdated GPS devices that can NOT track indoors as they do not offer “Impaired location” capability.  Upon the basis that this RFP requires “Impaired location” (see item 3.1.3), to enable proposal/evaluation of latest general GPS devices, will the State please delete “No motion or motion detection” from 3.2.1 or amend it to indicate that is an option but NOT mandatory (“Optional No motion or motion detection”)?

A:  
MDOC will make “no motion or motion detection” optional.

	16. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: What percentage of the overall participants will require officers to receive “Phone” notification? Additionally, this item calls out “Describe how users are notified of alerts (mentioned above). Address the following notification methods. MDOC prefers a system that notifies users automatically, without  the need for human intervention…Phone”  Does the State consider “SMS/Text” synonymous for “Phone” notification? If NOT, upon the basis that “Phone” notification otherwise involves human intervention, will you please confirm that vendors proposing “Phone” as a manual process (ala monitoring center operator call) will NOT be scored down? 

A: 
MDOC requires an automated system via text and emails not live phone notification.

	17. 
	18
	3.6
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: This item calls out “BUSINESS SERVICES Offerors must address and explain the following areas:” (7th bullet calls out) “Lost and/or damaged equipment costs” Are participants violated from the program for lost/damage/stolen equipment (more specifically, will participants who lose/damage/steal equipment lose their eligibility and be permanently removed to avoid multiple losses of equipment by the same participant)? 
If so, will the State impose a requirement whereby offenders who fail to surrender and/or return equipment to the vendor (or a State office) a condition of the participant’s compliant completion of the program? 
No insurance provider will cover equipment provided to individuals who have broken the laws.  As such, all leading monitoring vendors must bundle the cost of anticipated lost/damaged/stolen equipment into the unit/day bid prices.  To enable all vendors to budget these losses accurately, what were the historical loses for this program over the past year (PLEASE NOTE: If the State does not have this information, the incumbent contractor will know and is obligated to provide this information to the State upon request as part of their contractual obligations.  The incumbent contractor has this information and, in the absence of sharing it via answers to vendor questions would provides an inherent advantage to the incumbent contractor that is NOT extended to all potential bidders).  How many “Global Positioning System (GPS)” devices were lost/stolen/damaged within the past year? = ____ “Global Positioning System (GPS)” units were lost/stolen/damaged devices during the last year.

What percentage of replacements of “Lost and/or damaged equipment” does MDOC want included in the base Section 5 Cost Proposal prices (A, B & C)? Will MDOC please add a statement such as the following example as part of the answers to vendor questions? Example: Industry standards for adult programs call out “An annual percentage of replacements equal to five percent (5%) of the units in use on participants shall be included at no cost within Section 5 Cost Proposal items A, B, & C and the proposer shall additionally identify the per-component lost/damaged equipment replacement costs within Section 5 Cost Proposal items G that shall be paid for any excess losses above this included percentage.” Additionally, upon the basis that each GPS device involved multiple components that may become lost, damaged, or stolen, may proposers all multiple sub bullets for multiple component replacement prices under Section 5, Cost proposal, item G? 

A:  
No, an offender will be removed on a case by case basis, but not permanently. 

Yes in most cases, offenders fail the program if they fail to turn in equipment.  One unit was lost/stolen/destroyed in FY 2013. The current contract has a 10% lost/damaged allowance.

	18. 
	18 & 19
	3.6, 5.0
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: Item 3.6 calls out “BUSINESS SERVICES Offerors must address and explain the following areas:” (8th, 9th & 10th bullets respectively call out) 

· “Billing invoices with electronic option” 

· “Self-pay that allows the offenders to pay the cost of the monitoring system”
· “Self-pay invoices that include current monthly payment, payment history, and account balance”

Additionally, Section 5 “Cost Proposal”, item F calls out ”Participant Pay Program Fee”

Please define in detail what is intended by “Billing invoices with electronic option” – Is this merely an emailed delivery of the PDF version of invoices to MDOC? If NOT, will you please define in detail?

What percentage of the overall participants are “Self-Pay”?

For “Self-Pay” does the contractor directly invoice participants?

For “Self-Pay” if the participant does NOT pay, does the State pay any/all unpaid balance at the end of each month?

Is item 3.6 “Self-Pay” the same as Section 5 Cost Proposal item F ”Participant Pay Program Fee”? If so, will you please amend Item F as follows to be consistent? ”Participant Self-Pay Program Fee” If NOT, will you please define each and describe how they are differentiated?

Is Section 5 Cost Proposal item F an additional unit/day fee that is to be added to items A or B &C for a total unit/day price for “Self-Pay” participants?

A: 
MDOC would like invoices to MDOC sent electronically via Word, PDF or other electronic format. MDOC would like offenders to receive invoice hard copies through US mail.  MDOC would like electronic copies of all offender invoices and pay records. 75% of MDOC offenders self-pay.

	19. 
	18
	3.6
	Q:  
This item calls out “BUSINESS SERVICES Offerors must address and explain the following areas:” (11th bullet calls out) “Other” s.  Will MDOC please define in detail what are intended by any/all such “Others”?

A:  
Six staff per four regions region and 8-12 per two regions for a total of 48 staff.  The State is open to webinar training for additional trainings.

	20. 
	18 & 20
	3.7 & 5.0
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: This item calls out “The contractor shall provide on-site training at a minimum of six separate regional Probation and Parole offices, at no additional cost to MDOC.” Additionally, page 20, item 5.0 “COST PROPOSAL” items J & K call our respectively “Additional Remote Training Cost” and “Additional On-Site Training Cost.” How many MDOC staff require training in each regional location?  Is MDOC open to webinar training for refresher/remote/additional/reoccurring training?

A:  
Six staff per region for a total of 36 staff.  The State is open to webinar training for additional trainings. 

	21. 
	18
	3.8
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: This item calls out “Units shall include supplies, such as batteries, latches, straps, and installation kits, at no extra charge.” What is the average length of stay per participant on electronic monitoring in MDOC’s program?  If straps are reusable, proven to last over one year under normal use, and contractor proposes annual proactive strap replacements, is this acceptable versus replacing straps after each participant?

A:  
Yes - two months is the standard program and may be extended to six months.  Certain sex offenders are statutorily required to be on lifetime GPS.

	22. 
	19 & 22
	4.2.1 & 6.2 
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: Will MDOC contact/verify all proposer references as part of these evaluations?  If NOT, what will determine which proposer References are and are NOT contacted?  Upon the basis that page 20, item 6.2 “EVALUATION CRITERIA TIER ONE” calls out “References, 4.2.11, 120” is each reference worth up to 40 points? How will MDOC apply these 120 maximum possible points to proposers who include more than the minimum three (3) references?
A: 
The State Reserves the right to contact any of the references in order to verify the information provided is accurate.  Please refer to the scoring included in the client reference form. Only 3 references will be used and the state will take the first three in the order that they are included in the offer.

	23. 
	19
	4.2
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: This item calls out “Resumes” Is it acceptable for proposers to include a simple bio generally addressing this information in lieu of an actual “resume”?  If submitted marked “CONFIDENTIAL” will MDOC hold this personal information confidential and withhold it from public release?

A: 
Yes to both questions.

	24. 
	19,

22 & 23
	4.2.4 & 

6.3


	Q:  
Multiple questions here: This item calls out “Offerors must be prepared to have the key personnel assigned to this project complete a product demonstration in Helena, Montana. The State reserves the right to have product demonstrations from the three highest scoring offerors.” Additionally, item 6.3 calls out “OFFEROR INTERVIEWS AND PRODUCT DEMONSTRATIONS–TIER TWO,,,Product Demonstrations may be requested for the top three scoring offerors from tier one, or for any offeror where the State determines it is in the best interest of the State to conduct such a product demonstration.” These items both call out “may” – As part of this RFP, is MDOC intent on definitely conducting demonstrations? Acknowledging that the methodology for each GPS manufacturer is unique and that MDOC is NOT familiar with all systems, please confirm that, if demonstrations are to be conducted by MDOC that MDOC will permit the demonstrator a reasonable opportunity to provide a brief initial training and orientation session to the MDOC staff at the inception of the demonstration regarding enrollment and activation of the GPS device and orientation on accessing the web based software? How many MDOC staff will be involved in the demonstration? How many GPS devices will be required for the demonstration? How long will the demonstration go on for per demonstrator (hours? days? - please define in detail) - Are functional GPS devices to be left with MDOC for ongoing demonstration or merely demonstrated during the same day of the presentation?  Additionally, per item 6.3, 4th bullet, can MDOC provide use of a data projector and blank screen or wall that presenters my plug their own laptops into to project the presentation? Additionally, upon the basis that 6.3 identifies demonstration scoring regarding “Alerts & Notifications”, will MDOC provide the contact numbers/addresses for notification at least seventy-two (72P) business hours in advance of the date of demonstration thereby enabling demonstrators to profile notification in advance of the presentation?

A:  
Yes MDOC will be conducting product demonstrations.  Yes the demonstrator may provide an orientation session.  Eight to ten MDOC staff will be attending product demonstrations.  One or two devices should be sufficient for the demonstration.  Demonstrations will be two hours in length.  Devices will only be available to DOC staff during the demonstration period.  MDOC will provide contact information 72 business hours prior to the demonstration date.  MDOC can provide use of a data projector and blank screen that presenters may plug their laptops into.

	25. 
	20
	5.0
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: Item A calls out “Per Unit Rental Fee (per day)” and items B & C respectively call out “Passive Monitoring Fee (per unit, per day)” and “Active Monitoring Fee (per unit, per day)” Is it MDOC’s intent that item A be for GPS equipment alone and be added to either item B or C for a total equipment plus monitoring fee?  Item A calls out “Per Unit Rental Fee (per day)” for all units onsite (excluding spares) every day plus items B or C when- in-use on participants? If this is NOT accurate, will MDOC please define in detail and provide a narrative example as to how it interprets the anticipated charge basis for these multiple items for one participant under GPS?

A: 
It is MDOC’s intent that item A be for GPS equipment and B or C be added, when in use, for a total monitoring fee.

	26. 
	20
	5.0
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: Item D calls out “Spare Unit Fee.” Is MDOC intent on paying this fee for all units of Equipment that are not actively enrolled on a participant? If this is NOT accurate, will MDOC please define in detail and provide a narrative example as to how it interprets the anticipated charge basis for “Spare Unit Fee.” under GPS?

A:  
MDOC requires a minimum of 20% shelf allowance.  MDOC does not want to pay for all units. 

	27. 
	20
	5.0
	Q:  
What percentage of onsite spare equipment does MDOC want included in the base Section 5 Cost Proposal prices (A, B & C)? Will MDOC please add a statement such as the following example as part of the answers to vendor questions? Example: Industry standards for adult programs call out “A percentage of onsite spare equipment shall be maintained equal to fifteen percent (15%) of the units in use on participants and shall be included at no cost within Section 5 Cost Proposal items A, B, & C and the proposer shall additionally identify the “Spare Unit Fee” within Section 5 Cost Proposal items F that shall be paid for any excess onsite spares above this included percentage.” 

A:  
MDOC requires a minimum of 20% shelf allowance.

	28. 
	20
	5.0
	Q:  
Upon the basis that item G calls out and addresses “Lost/Stolen/Damaged Unit Replacement Cost”, what is intended and anticipated by item L calls out “Equipment Maintenance”?

A:  
MDOC requires notice of any maintenance cost involved with the equipment.

	29. 
	20
	5.0
	Q:  
Multiple questions here:

What is the present average daily MDOC population statewide on Active GPS?

What is the present average daily MDOC population statewide on Passive GPS?

Under the incumbent MDOC contract, what does MDOC currently pay for the following items 

(NOTE: If simpler, please include a complete copy of the incumbent contact & pricing with the 

answers to vendor questions):

A. Per Unit Rental Fee (per day)
$


B.
Passive Monitoring Fee (per unit, per day)
$


C.
Active Monitoring Fee (per unit, per day)
$ 


D.
Spare Unit Fee
$ 


E.
RF Beacon Fee
$ 


F.
Participant Pay Program Fee
$ 


A:
The current contract can be found at the following link:

http://www.cor.mt.gov/content/Resources/Contracts/b/B_I_Inc_COR09_1682R.pdf


	30. 
	25
	Appendix B
	Q: 
 Regarding “4.2 Withholding of Payment”, is the State open to amending this as follows? 

“4.2 Withholding of Payment.  The State may withhold disputed payments to Contractor under the subject statement of work by providing advance written notice to cure to Contractor or where no statement of work exists, the applicable contract). The withholding may not be greater than, in the aggregate, fifteen percent (15%) of the total value of the subject statement of work or applicable contract. With respect to payments subject to milestone acceptance criteria, the State may withhold payment only for such specific milestone if and until the subject milestone criteria are met. Contractor is not relieved of its performance obligation if such payment(s) is withheld.”

A:  
The State rejects the proposed language, no changes will be made.

	31. 
	25
	Appendix B
	Q:  
Multiple questions here: Item 5 calls out “COOPERATIVE PURCHASING.” Upon the basis that Montana has previously participated in the Western States Contracting Alliance (WSCA), and cognizant that WSCA-NASPO recently completed an extensive RFP process (#00212https://fortress.wa.gov/ga/apps/ContractSearch/ContractSummary.aspx?c=00212 ) making multiple awards to multiple vendors for a contract term of up to ten (10) years, for the same technology MDOC is seeking in this RFP, specifically why has Montana elected to issue this RFP and NOT instead acquired GPS technologies and services via WSCA-NASPO contract #00212?  Will the State please postpone this RFP to consider cancelling the RFP rather, adopting/contracting with WSCA-NASPO contract #00212?

A:  
The MDOC is seeking equipment and services that differs from those currently offered through the WSCA contract.

	32. 
	13

16
	3.0

3.4.1
	In both section 3.0 and .3.4.1 the solicitation states:

“It is a mandatory requirement of this RFP that the OTS use at a minimum GPS, Cell Phone Tower Tracking, and an RF Beacon per unit. The RF Beacon will signal via cell tower and/or landline.”

During the pre-proposal conference, the State requested vendors to provide the agency with industry standard definitions of a GPS beacon and an optional home-based downloader. 

· The industry standard, generic definition of a GPS beacon is as follows: “The beacon provides radio frequency (RF) monitoring by continuously emitting RF signals. When the offender-worn tracking unit enters the range of the beacon, the tracking unit stops collecting GPS points. The offender is monitored via the RF signals. The beacon does not transmit program or equipment data to the monitoring computer.”

· The industry standard, generic definition of a downloader is as follows: “The home-based downloader is an optional component, and only critical in situation where the offender lives, works, or travels in areas with little to no cell coverage. The offender simply plugs the tracking unit into the downloader, and program and equipment information is automatically communicated to the monitoring computer via the offender’s landline connection.”

	33. 
	17
	3.6
	Q:  
What is the desired spare allowance of tracking devices that should be incorporated into the cost of item “A. Per Unit Rental Fee (per day)”?  

A:   
The current spare unit allowance is 20%

	34. 
	17
	3.6
	Q:  
What is the current lost and damaged allowance of tracking devices that should be incorporated into the cost of item “A. Per Unit Rental Fee (per day)”?  

A:  
The current allowance is 10%

	35. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:  
As discussed during the pre-proposal conference, please add items “E. RF Beacon Fee” and “F. Participant Pay Program Fee” to the list of cost items that will be evaluated. 

A:  
The State agrees to this.

	36. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:
As discussed during the pre-proposal conference, please add item “M. Home-Based Receiver” to the list of costs that are informational only and will not be scored. 

The home-based downloader is an optional component, and only critical in situation where the offender lives, works, or travels in areas with little to no cell coverage (in fact, currently the Montana DOC does not use any home-based downloaders). The offender simply plugs the tracking unit into the downloader, and program and equipment information is automatically communicated to the monitoring computer via the offender’s landline connection.

A: 
The State agrees to this.

	37. 
	13
	3
	Q: 
In section 3.0 as well as other sections the RFP refers to an RF Beacon and that it is mandatory with the GPS OTS. It states that “the RF Beacon will signal via cell tower and/or landline.” There are two RF beacons that act as RF receivers that receive RF signals from the One Piece GPS and when in violation (beacon is not receiving RF transmit anymore – home curfew violation) the GPS device recognizes that and sends a violation across the cellular model in the GPS device. The beacon will not communicate through a land line or cellular directly. Is that allowable?

A:  
Yes.

	38. 
	14

16

17


	3.1.4

3.5

3.7
	Q:  
Can the contract be a reseller of equipment and describe the security, data center and infrastructure of the equipment provider while the offeror provides services like training, support of products (RMA, ordering, etc.) and offender fee collection?  

A:  
Yes.

	39. 
	15
	3.3
	Q:  
Zoning what is “Ability to make undifferentiated zones for notification of entry and exit without rules associated?” Can size of one be determined by staff? 

A:  
DOC would like officers to be able to create inclusion and exclusion zones in certain cases like if a new school is built, the officer can create an exclusion zone around that school.  

	40. 
	16
	3.3
	Q:  
RFP states “Can zones be created around mobile devices such as a cell phone or an offender’s bracelet?” Is this currently in use and what are you using mobile zones for? How many offenders/victims is this being used on?  

A:  
No, this is not currently being used.

	41. 
	13
	3.1.1
	Q:  
Must describe iOS or Android applications (software). Are you currently using them?  

A:  
Yes on smart phones or tablets.

	42. 
	16
	3.3.2
	Q:  
See an offender in real time. Recording GPS in real time is unrealistic, as the point need to be collected and then plotted. Would you prefer us to tell how close to real time our technology is?   

A:  
Yes.

	43. 
	16
	3.6
	Q:
Business Services – Bullet point 9 “Self pay that allows the offenders to pay the cost of the monitoring system”. This was in a previous RFP. Is this a service that is being used? If so, how does the existing provider support this service? At the ends of months, do you get invoiced for the service by your provider and collected fees are credited? What about offenders that don’t pay or indigent offenders?  

A:  
Yes. Provider sends invoice to offender, offender pays directly to provider, and DOC assists with collecting fees from offender.  DOC pays provider balance after offender paid fees is deducted from invoice.

	44. 
	
	
	Q:  
Termination for Cause – It is unusual for a public safety products and services to be terminated immediately. Is this after the vendor has the ability to cure the issue that is causing the termination?  

A:  
Yes.


	45. 
	
	
	Q:  The RF Beacon and Participant Program Fee are mandatory, shouldn’t they be scored?

A:  Replace Section 5 with the following.  Move E. and F. to mandatory.

SECTION 5:  COST PROPOSAL

All subsections of Section 5 not listed in the "Instructions to Offerors" on page 3 require a response. Restate the subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response.

5.0
COST PROPOSAL

Offeror’s must submit an itemized cost proposal as identified below. The State will evaluate the proposed costs and apply the evaluation formula to determine the relative score for each offer. Proposals must include sufficient, detailed information to support the offered costs.

A. Per Unit Rental Fee (per day)
$


B.
Passive Monitoring Fee (per unit, per day)
$


C.
Active Monitoring Fee (per unit, per day)
$ 


D.
Spare Unit Fee
$ 


E.
RF Beacon Fee
$ 


F.
Participant Pay Program Fee
$ 

The following costs are informational only and will not be scored:

G.
Lost/Stolen/Damaged Unit Replacement Cost
$ 


H.
Strap Replacement Cost
$ 


I.
Charger Replacement Cost
$ 


J.
Additional Remote Training Cost
$ 


K.
Additional On-Site Training Cost
$ 


L.
Equipment Maintenance
$ 




	46. 
	
	
	Q:  
Section 6 to update scoring for question 9 above:

Cost Proposal                                 20% of points for a possible 200 points
Category
Section of RFP / Point Value

Per Unit Rental Fee (per day)
5.0           80

Passive Monitoring Fee (per unit, per day)
5.0           45

Active Monitoring Fee (per unit, per day)
5.0           45

Spare Unit Fee (per day)
5.0           10

RF Beacon Fee                                                                     5.0           20       

Participant Pay Program Fee                                                5.0           20

Lowest overall cost receives the maximum allotted points. All other proposals receive a percentage of the points available based on their cost relationship to the lowest.  Example:  Total possible points for cost are 200. Offeror A's cost is $20,000. Offeror B's cost is $30,000. Offeror A would receive 200 points. Offeror B would receive 134 points (($20,000/$30,000) = 67% x 200 points = 134).

Lowest Responsive Offer Total Cost
x
Number of available points = Award Points


This Offeror's Total Cost



	47. 
	
	
	Q:  
Can the due date be extended to be 2 weeks from the date the answers are posted?

A:  
Yes, the new due date will be posted on an addendum on or before October 25, 2013.

	48. 
	17
	3.6
	Q: 
Is self-pay an optional program and not a required service?

A:   
Self pay is required.

	49. 
	17
	3.8
	Q: 
This section states “Units shall include supplies such as batteries, latches, straps, and installation kits at no extra charge:  Does this allow us to charge for additional supplies that are used as replacements?

A:   
Yes the company can provide a replacement cost but it will be considered in the overall evaluation.

	50. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:    What is the number of active units to be utilized?

A:    80-140.

	51. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:    What is the number of passive units to be utilized?

A:    N/A.


	52. 
	
	
	Q:  
Who is the current provider and what is the State currently paying per day?

A:  
BI, Inc., $3.65 per day.

	53. 
	13
	3.0
	Q:  
Who is the current contracted vendor providing these products and services?

A:  
BI, Inc.

	54. 
	13
	3.0
	Q:  
What is the MDOC current average daily number of offenders on Active GPS?  

A:  
80-140.


	55. 
	13
	3.0
	Q:  
What is the MDOC current average daily number of offenders on Passive GPS?  

A:  
0.

	56. 
	13
	3.0
	Q:  
What is the MDOC current average daily number of offenders on RF Beacon?

A:  
80-140.  

	57. 
	15
	3.2.2
	Q:  
What method(s) is MDOC personnel currently using to be notified on alerts from Active GPS devices?

Text, email, phone call

A:  
Text and email.

	58. 
	16
	3.4.1
	Q:  
Is an RF Beacon to be utilized in conjunction with every GPS device utilized?

A:  
Yes, with a few exceptions.

	59. 
	16
	3.4.2
	Q:  
What is the GPS tracking interval currently being provided to MDOC for Active GPS?  

A:  
1 every minute with call in every 30 min unless zone violation.

	60. 
	16
	3.4.2
	Q:  
What is the GPS tracking interval currently being provided to MDOC for Passive GPS?

A:  
N/A.

	61. 
	17
	3.6
	Q:  
Is the MDOC’s Offender Tracking Program going to be Offender-Pay?

A:  
Yes.

	62. 
	17
	3.6
	Q:  
If the MDOC’s Program is Offender-Pay, will MDOC be subsidizing payment to vendor for indigent offenders or those offenders who fail to make payments? 

A:   
Yes

	63. 
	17
	3.6
	Q:  
If the MDOC’s Program is Offender-Pay, will MDOC personnel collect payment from offenders or will the vendor be required to collect payment? 

A:   
Vendor will invoice offenders directly and MDOC will enforce collection of payment

	64. 
	17
	3.7
	Q:  
What is the MDOC’s timeframe expectation for the initial on-site training to be completed at the six regional Probation and Parole Offices?

A:  
Two weeks.

	65. 
	17
	3.7
	Q:    
What is the expected number of MDOC staff to be trained at each regional office?

A:     6-9.

	66. 
	18
	4.2.3
	Q:  
Will the MDOC accept key personnel “bio’s” rather than full resumes for our proposals?

A:  

Either.

	67. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:  
What is the current contracted daily fee/unit for Active GPS?

A:  

$3.65.

	68. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:  
What is the current contracted daily fee/unit for Passive GPS?

A:  

N/A.

	69. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:  
What is the current contracted daily fee/unit for Spare Units?
A:   
$2.35.

	70. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:  
What is the current contracted daily fee/unit for RF Beacon?

A:  

No Cost.

	71. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:  
What is the current replacement cost for a lost/stolen/damaged GPS device?

A:  

$1,740 above 10%.

	72. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:  
What is the current replacement cost for a lost/stolen/damaged RF Beacon?

A:  

$250.00.

	73. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:  
What is the current replacement cost for a strap?

A:  

$60.00.

	74. 
	19
	5.0
	Q:  
What is the current replacement cost for a charger?

A:  

$60.00.

	75. 
	18
	4.2.1
	Q:  
Section 4.2.1 References:  One of the responders on today's teleconference asked a question regarding references and if the State would only accept reference from state agencies (not companies), implying U.S. State agencies.  We believe this question is an overt attempt to manipulate the language of the RFP in order to limit competition.  

If the State intends to modify the language of Section 4.2.1, which we find acceptable in its present form, we respectfully ask that the State accept all references, even those from agencies outside of the United States, and evaluate and score the references based on their applicability and merits.  

Put in question form:  Will the State accept references from government agencies outside of the United States who utilize the proposed products and services?

A:  
Yes-the language will remain in its present form as in the original RFP document.

	76. 
	
	
	Q:  
Please identify: The incumbent vendor.

A:  

BI, Inc. is the current vendor, prior to BI, Sentinal-G4S was the vendor.

	77. 
	
	
	· Q:  
Please identify: The services currently provided.

A:  
http://www.cor.mt.gov/content/Resources/Contracts/b/B_I_Inc_COR09_1682R.pdf
Link to the current contract with BI, Inc.

	78. 
	
	
	Q:  
Please identify: The names of equipment in use.

A:  
http://www.cor.mt.gov/content/Resources/Contracts/b/B_I_Inc_COR09_1682R.pdf
Link to the current contract with BI, Inc.

	79. 
	
	
	Q:  
Please identify: pricing for each type of equipment and each service in use

A:  
http://www.cor.mt.gov/content/Resources/Contracts/b/B_I_Inc_COR09_1682R.pdf
Link to the current contract with BI, Inc.

	80. 
	
	
	Q:  
What is the expected average volume of devices MDOC will require per year?

A:  

MDOC currently has 80-140 offenders on GPS on any given time.

	81. 
	14
	3.1.4
	Q:  
Please clarify how Offerors should respond to Section 3.1.4 Security, which asks that plans and procedures be submitted upon contract award. Can Offerors simply acknowledge understanding and acceptance of the item, or is each bulleted item to be addressed?

A:  
The offeror can acknowledging the understanding and acceptance of 3.1.4 in its entirety without the need to indicate acceptance of each individual bulleted item.

	82. 
	17
	3.6
	Q:  
Section 3.6 Business Services requests that Offerors address self-pay procedures. Please provide the following information:


Would invoicing and collecting payment be the responsibility of the Contractor or MDOC?

A:  
The contractor.

What are the MDOC’s sanctions against the offender for not paying monitoring fees?

A:  
Sanctions are determined by a hearings officer on a case by case basis.


Will the MDOC assume responsibility for unpaid fees?

A:  
MDOC pays the balance of the monthly invoice after the Contractor applies credit for fees paid by offenders


How far behind in payment must an offender become before the MDOC removes his/her from the community supervision program?

A:  
This is also determined by a hearings officer on a case by case basis.


If an offender is removed from the program, but has an outstanding balance, can the offender return to the program without paying off the balance?

A:  
The balance will be paid by MDOC.


Is the Contractor allowed to require offenders to pre-pay an amount toward their device leasing cost? Two weeks advance payment is fairly standard practice in self-funded programs. Is this an acceptable amount?

A:  
No because MDOC will pay unpaid balances.


What percentage of MDOC’s supervised population is indigent offenders? Will MDOC contribute to device leasing cost for indigent offenders?

A:  
Yes MDOC pays all unpaid balances.

	83. 
	
	
	Q:  
How does the MDOC expect the GPS monitoring device to operate when in (a) Active Monitoring and (b) Passive Monitoring? For example, how often does the MDOC expect the GPS monitoring device to receive GPS signals and how often should the device report monitoring data when the offender is compliant with the terms of his/her supervision?

A:  
MDOC requires an acquisition rate of once per minute and a transfer rate of every 30 minutes, except for alerts for Active GPS. MDOC requires an acquisition rate of once per minute and a transfer rate of every 24 hours except for alerts for Passive GPS.

	84. 
	
	
	Q:  
Please confirm that the MDOC and not the Offeror will be responsible for equipment installation and removal.

A:  
This is correct.

	85. 
	13
	3.0
	Q:  
Please define the requirements for the RF Beacon Equipment in detail.  

A:  
The RF beacon must be able to communicate with the GPS ankle device.  MDOC requires the availability of RF beacon/home unit equipment that is able to communicate via cell phone tower or landline.  MDOC wants the choice of either/or based on department needs.

	86. 
	13
	3.0
	Q:  
If the Offeror does not offer a RF Beacon, will their offer be rejected?

A:  

Yes

	87. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q:  
Please define Acquisition Rate

A:  

MDOC requires an acquisition rate of once per minute for both Passive and Active GPS.

	88. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q:  
Please define Transfer Rate.  

A:  
MDOC requires a transfer rate of every 30 minutes, or alerts, for Active GPS and every 24 hours except for alerts for Passive GPS.

	89. 
	15
	3.2.1
	Q:  
No motion or motion detection.  This is outdated technology.  Can this be optional to not exclude current technology?

A:  
Yes

	90. 
	21
	6.3
	Q:  
We do not feel that 2 hours is adequate time to demonstrate our system. Can this time be extended?
A:  
Yes.
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